UNITED NATIONS

ZCONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

e s an

GENERAL
E/ICEF [SR.TH \3/
12 February 1951

INGLISH
ORIGINAL: TFRINCH

e e b, | . et |t sty - e ot o o7 e < e s - p—

UNITED NATIONS INTERMATIONAL CHILDREN'S EMERGENCY FTJND o
EXECUTIVE BOARD
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE STVENTY-FOURTH MEETING

Held at Iake Success, New York,
on Friday, 9 February 1951, at 10.30 a.m.

CONTENTS ¢

Openingz of the meeting
Guestion of the representation of China
Election of the Chairman
Adoution of the agenda |
Rules of procedure (E/ICZ¥/50)
Final report of the first Exzequt{we Boerd (E/ICIF/L,8, E/ICEF/160)
Actinz Chairman: Mr, MARTIN HILL Secretariat
Chairman.: Mra. SINCIAIR Canada,
Members : Mr, BRENNAN Australia
Mr. FENAUX Delgium
Mr. PACHECO Bolivia
Mr, de PATVA IEITE Brazil
i Mr. SEVETSOV Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic
Mr, COREA Ceylon
Mr. P, Y, TSAO ~ China

Any corrections to this record should be submitted in duplicate in elther
of the working languages (English or French), within two working days, to the
Director, language Services Divieion, Room Al-223, lake Success. Corrections
should Lear the appropriate symbol number amnd be enclosed in an envelope marked
"URGENT", Corrections can be dealt with more speedily if delegatlons will be
good enouzh to incorporate them in a mimeographed copy of the record,



E /1CEF /SR T4
"Page 2

Members: (continued)

. Miss EERNARDINO Dominicen Republic
; Mr, DAVALOS Ecuador
Mr, DEBRE France
Mr. RAJAN India
Miss ARTATI SUDIRDJO Indonesia
Mr, KHALIDY Iraq
Mr, LOURIE N Israsel
Mr, MASCIO Italy
Mr, WEIR New Zealand
Mr, TLINDT . Switzerland
Mz, DHENGSVANG : Thailand
Mr, SAVUD Turkey
Mr. HAHN Union of South Africa v
Mr. CHECHETKIN , Union of Soviet Socialist Republics
Mr, IEDWARD United Kingdom of Grest Britain and
) Northern Ireland
Miss IENROOT United States of America
Mr. BRACCO Uruguay
Mr, PIEIC Yugoslavia

Representatives of specialized agenciles:

Mr. DAWSON International Labour Organisation (II10)

Mr. AYKROYD . Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Mr, PATTON United Nations Educational, Scientific
and Cultural Organization (UNESCO)

Dr. INGALIS World Health Organization (WHO)

OPENING OF THE MEETING

Mr. MARTIN HILL (Secretariat), on behalf of the Secretary-General,
welcomed the members of the new Executive Board, particularly those who were
attending a meeting of the Board for the first time , two of whom represented
countries which were not Members of the United Nations, He observed that as a
regult of its activities during the preceding four years, UNICEF had become known
all over the world, and he emphasized the greatness of its achievement, A new
phase of activity was beginning for the organization and the opportunities for
doing constructive work would be no less than they had been in the past.

/He




E/ICEF /SR.T4
Page 3

He transmitted to the Board the Secretary-General's good wishes for success in
its important tesk, and promised it the Secretariat's fullest co-operation, He
then invited wembers of the Council to proceed to the election of a Chairman.

QUESTION OF THE REFRESENTATION CF CHINA

Mr., CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), speaking on a
point of order, raised the question of the representation of China. He recalled
that the Central People's Goverrment of the People's Republic of China had
informed the United Nations that it did not consider the Kuomiﬁtang representative
to revresent the people of China and that he should therefore be excluded from
the Executive Board and the other organs of UNICEF. The Minister of Foreign
Affairs of the Central People's Goverrment of the People's Republic of China had
in August 1950 named Mr., Wu Yun-fu as ite representative on the Executive Board
of UNICEF The vepresentative of the Seviet Union endorsed the view of the
Government of the Peonle's Re“ublic of @Ghina and declared that the presence of
the Kuomintang representative in the Executive Board was out of order.

Moreover, on 25 Janusxy 1951 the Universal Postal Union had confirmed
its decision to recognize the representative of the Govermment of the People's
Republic of China as the only authorized representative of China,

He submitted a formal proposal to exclude the representative of the
Kuomintang from the Executive Board and to invite the repregentative of the
Central People's Govermment of the People's Republic of China to take part in

ita work,

Mr. MARTIN HILL (Secretariat) stated that as the representative of the
Secretary-General he was merely occupying the Chair until the Board had had time
to elect a Chairman. He would act In accordance with the Board's wishes
regarding the procedure to be followed in dealing with the proposal of the
representative of the USSR, but he hoped that the substance of the question
would be gonsidered only after a Chairman had been elected.

Mr. TSAO (China) wondered whether he ought to reply to the representgtive

of the USSR before or after the election of the Chairman., 1In any case he reeerve&
the right to make his observations on the proposal before the Board.

/Miss IENROOT




E /ICEF [BR.TS
Page 4

Miss IENROOT (United States of America) d1d not wish to discuss the USSR
proposal iIn detail., It was the opinion of her Goverrment , In view of the
General Assembly resolution of 14 December 1950, that the Executive Board of
UNICEF should not take any decision on the question for the time being., She
recalled that the resolution of 14 December 1950 had recommended that when any
such question arose it should be considered by the General Assembly or the
Interim Commlttee and that the attitudé adopted by the General Aggembly or its
Interim Committee should be taken into account in other atzgans of the |
United Nations,

She further pointed out that organs of the Genersl Assembly were still
studying the question, and stated that she intended, in accordance with rule 26
of the rules of procedure, to mové"tiie ad Jowrnment of the debate on that topio
until the General Assembly had come to a declaion., Meanwhile, she thought that
the present representative of Chiné eh&uld. kesp his seat on the Board. Finaglly,
she observed that in her Government's view @@ representative of the Chinese
Communist Govermment should be permitted te vccupy a seat in any organ-of the
United Nations as long as the armed forces of that Government were fighting
azainst the United Nations forces in Korea., '

Mr. SHVETSOV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that a
repreasentative of the Kuomintang, a group the Chinese people had rejected, which
only maintained itself in Formosa thanks to the support of ‘the American army
and navy, could not be allowed to asit on the Board., The Chinese seat on the
Executive Board belonged by right to the representative of the People's Republic
of China, He therefcre supported the USSR representative's proposal.

Mr, BREMNAN (Australia) pointed out that rule 9 of the rules of procedure
1aid dowm the procedure for settling questions of representation on the Board.
According to that rule, the Chalrman of the Executive Board examined credentials
and reported upon them to the Board. He therefore propomed that a Chairman
should be elected immediately. The latter would then examine the credentials of
repregentatives and make a ruling with regard to the USSR representative's proposal,
which the Doard would either uphold or reverse,

Mr, TSAOQ




E/ICEF/SR.Th
Page 5

Mr. TSAO (Chim) expressed surprise that the USSR representative was
once agein raising the question of Chinese representation. In his opinion,
events in the Far East and the discussion in the First Committee had shown the
true neture of the intentions of the Soviet Goverrment and the Chinese Communist
regime, His Govermment was the lawful Goverrment of China; it had helpsd to
establish the United Nations and the Soviet Unlon had signed a treaty of
friendship and alliance with it in 1945. The Chinese Communist regime did not
represent the Chinese people, had not been elected and was merely a tool of
Russian Comunism,  Moreover it had recently been formally condemned by the
Filrst Committes and the General Assembly,

The Beard had already on two previous occasions refused to consider the
same proposal by the USSR, and he consideyed {Mat the question was still outside
the competence of the Board, In that comnexion he too quoted the resolution
adopted on 14 December 1950 by the General Aspembly, recommending that in the
event of controversy concerning the represam@ation of a Member State, the
question should be considered in the light W€ the Puwrposes and Principles of
the Charter, Artfcle 4 of which provided that only peace-loving States could
become Members of the United Natlons. The Peking regime, however, had just
been condemned as an aggreasor by the General Assembly.

Moreover, UNICEF was not an independent organ. It was a subsidiary
organ established by a Generasl Assembly resolution and was therefore undoubtedly
bound by the resolution of 14 December 1950,

| According to the resolution adopted on 1l December 1950 by the
General Assembly, the Executive Board of the Fund was to consist of the
Goverrments of the States represented on the Social Commission and the Govermments
of eight other States to be designated by the Economic and Social Councilj;
hence his delegation, being represented on the Social Commission and the
Economic and Soclal Council, was entitled to sit on the UNICEF Executive Board.
It would therefore be illegal and contrary to the Charter for the Executiye Board,
on its own authority, to change the reprssentation of China. The USSR proposal
vas lnadmissable and the Executive Board was not called upon to take any
deoislon on 1t.

Miss LENROOT (United States of America), in accordance with rule 26 of
the rules of procedure, formelly moved the adjournment of the debate on the USSR
proposal untll the General Aasembiy had taken a decision on the guestlon of
Chinese representation,

JMr, CHECEETKIN




B /ICEF /SR, T4
Page 6

Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Sociallst Republics) opposed the
United'Statéa representative's motion for adjowrnment. The motion was out of
order end was merely an attempt to bypass the powers of the Executive Board,
The latter established its own rules of procedure and under rule 9 1t was
empowered to examine the credentials of representatives on the Board, - The
USSR proposal was therefore quite in accordance with rule 9 of the rules of
procedurs, |

Mr, TSAO (Chima), speaking on a point of order, pointed out that the
United States representative had formally moved the adjournment of the debate,
That motion had priority; only two representatives could speak for and two
against 1t. The USSR representative, however, was dealing with the substance
of the question, vhich was contrary to the yules of procedure,

Mr, MARTIN HIIL (Secretariat) could not, as Acting Chairmen, admit
that remark; ho was obliged to allow the USSR representative to explain why he
would vote against the motion for adjournment.

Mr, CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) repeated that
some organs of the United Nations had already taken decisions on the question of
Chinese representation and maintalned that the Board was empowered to decide on
its own attitude. He therefore urged that his proposal should be put to the

vote,

Mr. IEDWARD (United Kingdom) also opposed the United States motion for
the adjournment of the dabate. He reminded the Boerd that the Australian
rebresentative, referring to ruls 9 of the ruies of procedeire, had called for
the immediate electlon of a Chairman, who would exam’ue the credentials of
represgentatives and report upon tham to the Foard. BHe supported the Australian
proposal,

Mr, KHALIDY (Iraq) supported the Upited States motion for adjourrment,
He stressed the great importance of the questiinn befors the Board and remarked
that the General Assembly had established a Committes for the specific purpose of
examining the question of the represenitation of Membor States. Until that
Committee had submitted 1ts repor’ the Executive Board could not come to any
decision on the guestion,

JMrs. SINCIAIR




E/ICEF /SR.T4
rage T

Mra. SINCIAIR (Canada) also supported the United States motion for
adjournment, She suggested, however, amending it to the effect that the USSR
propesal should be postponed indefinitely and not merely until the General Assembly

had taken a decision on the sub,ect.

Miss IENROOT (United States of America) accepted the Canadian amendment.
although she preferred the originel drafting of her motion, The United States
motion as amended therefore simply proposed to adjourn the consideration of the
USSR proposal.

Mr. MARTIV HILL (Secretariat), in reply to a guestion by the
repregentative of Ceylon, éaid that he would first put to the vote the motion
for adjovrnment, The procedure provosed by te Australian representative could
be examined subsequently,

Mr, BRENMAN (Australia) agreed that the motion for adjowrnment had
priority; he felt some doubt about rovertige to his procedural proposal,

Mr, SHVETSOV (Byelorussian Soviet Soclalist Republic) opposed any
adjourmment of the USSR proposal, '

My, TSAQ (China), gpeaking on a point of order, pointed out that the
United States representative had moved the adjourmment of the debate and its
closure, He too was opposed to continuing the debate, He further remarked
that the question of the examination of representatives! credentials by the
Chairman had been raised, That was quite a separate gquestlion from the right
of the governments of States to sit on the Executive Board. The Chairman could
only examine the credentials of representatives.

Mr., SEVETSOV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic) did not consider
that he had infringed the rules of procedure, which allowed two representatives
to agpeak in favour of and two agailngt a motion for adjournment, The
United Kingdom representative had also orposed the motion for adjournmﬁnt,
although for a different reason. He urged that the USSR proposal should be
put to the vate,

JMr, MARTIN HILL




oeee fan o

Mr. MARTIN BILL (Secretariat) said the Board must now take a fentnion
on the motion for closure of the debate.

Mr. CIECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) could not accept
the way in which the procedural question had been put and urged that his proposal
should be put to the vote,

Mr, BRENNAN (Australia) observed that the question under discuasion
was not a motion for cleosure of the debate, but a motion for adjournment, which
took precedence over any other proposal. He remarked further that the adoption
either of his original vproposal that the election of the Chairman should take
place first or of the motion for adjournment would in fact have the same result,

The ACTING CEAIRMAN put to the vote th® United States motion for
adjdurnment of the deltate.
The motion for adjounrment was sdopted by X0 votes to 5, with 2 abstentions.

Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of #lovied Socimlist Republics) contended that it
was evident from the Australian representative's observation that adjournment of
the debate on his progosal was directly related to the question of the election
of the Chairmen, The UBSR proposal would have to be reconsidered after the
election.

Mr. MARTIN HILL (Secretariat) sald that it would be for the Chalrmen
who was elected to take a decision on that gquestion.,

Mr, IOURIE (Tsrael) had voted againgt the motion for agdjournment
because his Govermment was of the opinion that China should be represented in
United Nations organs by the representative of the People's Republic of Chlna.

Mr. RAJAN (In@ia) pointed out that while his delegation had suprnorted
the resolution of the General Assembly on the question of China's representation
in the Generzl Assembly, following the defeat of India's own resolution, it hed
abstained on that part of the former which preserved the status of the present
representatives of China pending a decision by the General Assembly on the report
of the Special Committee. His delegation therefore felt free to decide the
question on its merits and, in accordance with the repeatedly affirmed policy of
his Govermment, he lhad therefore voted against the United States proposal.

/EIECTION




E/ICEF/SR.T4

Pege 9
ELECTION OF THE CEAIRMAN

Mr. MARTIN HILL (Secrets .ut) requested the members of the Executive
Board to submit nominetions for the office of Chairmen,

Mr. DEERE (France) nominated Mrs, Sinclair (Canada). In support of his
proposal, he stressed that Canada had made an outstandingly generous and effective
contribution to the work of UNICEF, Mrs, Sinclair had been Chairmen of the
previous Programme Committee, and the expérience she had thus gained would be
very vealuable, He added that her whole life had been devoted to child welfare,

As & further mark of the esteem in which Mrs, Sinclair vas held, he
proposed that the election should be by acclamation, rather than by secret ballot,

Mr, de PAIVA IEITE (Brazil), Mr, TSAO (China), Mr, LINDT (Switzerland),
Miss LENROOT (United States of America) and Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic)
vermly supported Mrs. Sinclair’'s nomine.tion, a.nd the proposal that the election

should be by acclameation,

Mr., MARTIN HILL (Secretariat) ‘asked whether there were any objections
to the election of Mrs, Sinclar as Ctalrmen by acclemation, which would be a
departure from the rules of procedure.

Mr, CHECHETKIN (Union of Sovlet Socialist Republics) considered that the
election of the Chairmen should teke place by secret ballot, in accordance with

the rules of procedure,

Me, MARTIN HILL (Secretariat) announced that the procedure laid down in
the rules of procedure would be followed, &s requested.
A yote was taken by secret ballot.
As a result of the vote, Mrs, Sinclair (Capade) was elected Chairman,

Mr, CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) observed that,
since the Chairman had been duly elected, there was now nothing to prevent the
Board from taking a decision, in accordance with rule 9 of the rules of procedure,
on the proposal he had submitted at the beginning of the meeting that the
Kuomintang representative should be excluded. » /The me




B/ICEF/SR.Th
Page 10

The CHAIRMAN stated that she had not had time to exarine the
credentials of representatives and she was therefore unable to accede to the
USSR representative's request.

Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) challenged the
Chairman's ruling and urged that his proposal ghould be put to the vote,
The Cheirmen's ruling wes maintained by 18 votes to 3, with 4 abstantions.

Mr. LEDWARD {United Kingdom) explaired that he had voted in favour of
the Chairmen'’s ruling because she ought to be given time to study representetives’
credentials,

ADOPTION CF THE AGENDA

The CHAIRMAN called the attenmtion of the members of the Board to the
sgenda submitted by the Administration, She observed that, if the usual practice
of the First Executive Board was followed, & number of itexﬁs would be referred to
& programme committee for consideration,

Miss IENROOT (United States of America), referring to the order of the
itews, asked whether the election of other officers and committees should not
teke place lmmediately after the adoption of the agenda, She thought it weculd .
by appropriate to refer the first two sections of item 4 and the whole of item T,
1.8, recommendations of the Executive' Director for mew allocations and apportione
mente, to a programme committee for consideration.

Mr. de PAIVA IEITE (Brazil) agreed with the United States suggestion,
ad’ ing thet, in his opinion, ltem 6, the office of the Executive Director,
should be considered immediately after the electlon of other officers and
committees., N '

Mr, DEERE (France) sald thet as many of the members were new to the
work of the Executive Board it would doubtless be <asier for them to elect the
other officers and the committees if they could first consult the other repre-
gontatives, It would, therefore, be better to adhere in the main to the agenda

a8 proposed by the Administration,
/Ho egreed




E/ICEF/SR.Th
Page 11

He agreed with the United States representative that sowe of the
guestions on the agenda should be referred to & programme committee which would
later report to the Board., The Board should therefore take up the comsideration
of the Final Report of the First Executive Board (E/ICEF/L.8) as soon &s it had
adopted the agenda; there would probably be & general discussion on the report
during which the Board could outline the Fund's futwure pciicy and which would
facilitate the consideration of addaitional sllocations and apportionments which
the Board would later undertake, At 1ts afternoon meeting the Board could also
elect its other officers and the members of the committees and could set up a
programme committee to consider the Executive Director's report and other agenda
itews, The programme committee should submit & report to the Board at the
beginning of the following week,

| His delegation would 'proposa the addition of another item to the agends;
1t wes anxious that the Executive Boerd should know of the work done by the
International Children's Centre in Paris during the past year, That item could
be inserted between itews 8 and 9 of the egenda.

Mr, PLEIC (Yugoslavia) supported the French representative's proposals,
The study of the Final Report of the First Executive Board would help to
familiarize new members with the work of UNICEF and would give them a clearer
idea of the functioning and 6rga.niza’cion of the Board,

Mr. MASCIO (Italy) seid that as the representative of a country which
ves taking part in the work of the Executive Board for the first time, he whole~
heartedly supported the French representative's proposal, which would give the
work of the Board a logical sequence. \

Miss LENROOT (United States of Amsrica) also supported the French
proposal; she added that the Board should elect its officers and the members
of the comittees during the afternoon meeting even if the comsideration of the
Final Report had not been completed. Ac soon as the agenda had been adopted
tvhe Board should examine the question of its rules of procedure,
The proposals of the representatives of Brazil, France, and the United Sﬁ;a&es
of Americe were adopted.

/The CHATRMAN




E/ICER/SR.Th
Page 12

The CEAIRMAN ennounced thet the United Natlons Secretariat hed ssked
her to suggest that the Board should consider item 6 of the agenda -- the b_f'_fice
of the Executive Director -- in closed session, She therefore suggested thé.t the
Boerd should consider that item immediately before that afternoon’s open: meetirng,

It vas _so decided. '
, The agends was adcpted as emended at the suggestion of the vrepressntstiveg cf
Brazil, France and the United States of Awerica, -

RULES OF PROCEDURE (E/ICEF/60)

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) sutmitted the following
smendments to the rules of procédure: thé words “ten days" in rule 3 to be
replaced by the words "three weeks' end the words "as fer as possible” in the
third and fourth lines of the sams rule to be deleted; the words et the end of
sub-paregraph (b) of rule ) followirg the words “by any member” to be deleted
and the following sub-parsgraph to be added to rule 59: "The Executive Bosrd
shall teke all necessary steps to &ssure tlose collaboration between the
administration of the Fund and the speciglized agencies in accordance with the
egreemept made between the United Netions end those agencies".

The CHAIRMAN wondered whether, since the rules of procedure had been
dravn up by & gub-committee &nd not by the Board jitgelf, the members of the
Board would not wish for an opportunity of considering them in detail. She
suggeated that they should be referred to a commlttee for study and report,

Miss LENROOT (United States of America) remerked that in that oase the
rules of procedure of the First Executive Board would remain in force until the
new rules had been adopted,

‘Mc, DEFRE (Frence) agreed with the Chairmen's suggestion; as the
revisicn of the rules of procsdure would teke sowe time, it would seem Jogical
to retain the rules of procedure of the First Executive Board until the
committee had made its report.

Mr, FENAUX (Belgium) suggested that the Boerd should ask the Chairman
to eppoint the committee in question, which, in hie view, should be swall,
The Cheirman's proposal was adopted, /FINAL REPORT




E/ICEF/SR.T4
rege 13

FINAL REPORT OF THE FIRST EXECUTIVE BOARD (E/ICEF/L.8, E/ICEF/160)

The CHAIRMAN recalled that at its last session the preceding Executive
Board had decided to give the present Board an account of its stewardship,
sumerizing, for the benefit of its successors, the experience acquired by the
Fund in determining policy and using its resources. She drew the attention of
the members to document E/ICFF/L.8.

Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Repwblics) reminded the
Board that in 1ts resolution 57 (I) of 11 December 1946, the General Assembly
had stipulsated that the Internationel Children’s Emergency Fund should be used
"for the benefit of childven &nd adolescents of countries which were victims of
eggression”, for the benefit of children and adolescents which were receiving
assistance from UNRRA and "for child bealth purpeses genersally, giving high
priority to the children of countries victims of aggression”. The General
Asseubly had also laid down that tie Fund should dispense or distribute supplies
or other assistance on the besis of meed "withou# diecrimination because of race,
creed, nationality status of political belief"”, It was clear from the Final
Report of the First Executive Board, however, that far from éahering to the
principles laid down in General Assembly resolution 57 (I), UNICEF had practised
discrimination towards the People's Democracies -- the countries which had
suffered most from the Hitlerite invasion, Disregarding the terms of that
resolution, the Fund had decreased the amount of svupplies dispatched to certain
countries and had even stopped all assisitance to Albanla, Romenia and Hungary,

In view of that fact, he Sould not approve the report before the

Board &nd would vote ageinst its adoption,

Miss LENRCOT (United States of America) said that it was not for the
Executive Board eithsr to adopt or reject the report which was submitted to it
for purposes of ianformetion only. The Board need only take note of it and
request that it should be circulated tc the varlous governmemte and bodles
concerned, Her delegatlon would in duwe couressubmit & mobion to that effect,

Mr., DEERE (France) egreed that there was no need for the Board to take
8 decision on the report since it ves only meant to furnish it with data which
would help it to decide upon its future course.
The meeting rose at 12,50 p.m,

19/ 2 a,m,





